INMEMORY OF SHAHEED MOHTARMA BENAZIR BHUTTO

*

SINDH [NSUR ANCE

Power To The People

Annual b

Report 201§




TABLE OF CONTENTS

In MEMORY OF SHAHEED MOHTARMA BEXAZiR BHUTTO

&
SINDH [NSUR ANCE

Power To THE PECPLE

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Introduction

Vision & Mission

Product Portfolio

Company Information

Board of Directors

Directors” Report to the Shareholders (English)

Key Financial Data

Directors’ Report to the Sharcholders (Urdu)

Notice for Second Annual General Meeting

Statement of Compliance with the Public Sector Companies
(Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

Review Report to the members on Statement of Compliance with the
Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

Auditors’ Report to the Members

Balance Sheet

Profit and Loss Account

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Changes in Equity

Statement of Premiums

Statement of Claims

Statement of Expenses

Statement of Investment Income

Notes to the Financial Statements

Pattern of Sharcholdings

Form of Proxy (English )

Form of Proxy (Urdu )




1% MEMORY OF SHAHEED MOHTARMA BENAZIR BHUTTO

INTRODUCTION =
SINDH [NSUR ANCE

P Tk PropLi

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Sindh Insurance Limited was incorporated on 20 December, 2013 with
an authorized and paid up capital of Rs.500 million. All shares of the
Company are held by Government of Sindh. Company obtained the
Certificate of Commencement of Business on 22 September 2014. The
registered office and principal place of business of the Company is
situated at 1st Floor, Imperial Court, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Karachi.
The Company operates only in Pakistan.

Sindh Insurance Limited is registered as non-life insurance Company
with Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan from August,
2014 and has been licensed to transact all classes of non-life insurance
business.

The Company management comprises of a team of qualified and

experienced professionals. Sindh Insurance Limited has the capacity

to underwrite risks in all avenues of General Insurance namely, Property
(Fire & Engineering), Marine, Motor, Liabilities, Health and Accident
etc. In addition, the Company has the expertise and arrangements with
overseas reinsurance companies enabling it to offer comprehensive
coverage for large infrastructure projects, specialized risks and
umbrella/blanket covers for large corporate groups.

The Company intends to maintain its service par excellence backed
by efficient clients’ servicing and an innovative approach by its
dedicated team of professionals; thereby providing the best possible
coverage for the protection of risks for its valued clients,
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Property Insurance Miscellaneous Insurance
Fire & Explosion Cash in Transit
Riot Strike Damage Cash in Safe
Malicious Damage Fidelity Guarantee
Atmospheric Disturbances Mobile Phone
Earth Quake All Risk
Air Craft Damage Bond
External Explosion Bankers Blanket
Burglary Burglary
Terrorism Personal Accident
Product Liability
Marine Insurance Public Liability
Workman Compensation
Cargo Export Commercial General Liability
Cargo Import Medical Insurance

Cargo Inland
Motor Insurance

Comprehensive Private Car
Comprehensive Commercial Vehicle
Comprehensive Motorcycles

Engineering Insurance

All Risk Contractors’
Machinery Breakdown (MBD)
Computer Equipments
Electronic Equipments

Boiler & Pressure Vessels
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COMPANY INFORMATION

Board of Directors
Muhammad Bilal Sheikh (Chairman)
Mohammad Sohail Khan Rajput
Syed Shahnawaz Nadir Shah
Muhammad Naimuddin Farooqui
Shamsuddin Khan
Ahmed Salahuddin
Akhtar Ali Khan

Chief Executive Officer
Muhammad Faisal Siddigui

Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary
Nadeem Akhter

Audit Committee
Muhammad Naimuddin Farooqui
Mohammad Sohail Khan Rajput
Syed Shahnawaz Nadir Shah

Risk Management/Operations Committee
Mohammad Sohail Khan Rajput
Muhammad Naimuddin Farooqui
Muhammad Faisal Siddigui

Human Resources Committee
Muhammad Bilal Sheikh
Shamsuddin Khan
Muhammad Faisal Siddigui

Procurement & Information Technology Committee
Muhammad Bilal Sheikh
Shamsuddin Khan
Muhammad Faisal Siddigui

Nomination Committee
Mohammad Sohail Khan Rajput
Muhammad Naimuddin Faroogui
Syed Shahnawaz Nadir Shah

Underwriting Committee
Ahmed Salahuddin
Muhammad Faisal Siddigui
Mohammad Raza
Nadeem Akhter
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Claim Committee
Ahmed Salahuddin
Muhammad Faisal Siddigui
Mohammad Raza

Reinsurance Committee
Ahmed Salahuddin
Muhammad Faisal Siddigui
Mohammad Raza

Key Management Personnel
Nadeem Akhter
Mohammad Raza
Nadeem Haider Sheikh
Faiza Khalid

Auditors
M/s. Riaz Ahmad & Company

Chartered Accountants

Legal Advisor
Muhammad Nadeem Khan

Bankers
Sindh Bank Limited

IFS Credit Rating

A (Single “A™) by Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (PACRA)

Company Incorporate Number
0086229

National Tax Number
4231500-0

Membership

The Insurance Association ol Pakistan (TAP)

Registered Office/Head Office
15t Floor, Imperial Court,
Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road,
Karachi. Pakistan

Contact
Tel T (92-21) 35640715-17
Fax T (92-21) 35640714
Email : info@sindhinsurancelid.com
Websile : www.sindhinsuranceltd.com
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MUHAMMAD BILAL SHEIKH

Chairman / Director

Chairman, Sindh Leasing Company Ltd., Sindh Modaraba Management Ltd. and Director, Sindh Bank Ltd. and Sui Southern
Gas Company Ltd. (SSGCL). Mr. Sheikh holds Masters degree in Commerce from Punjab University, besides being a Fellow
member of the Institute of Bankers Pakistan. He is a career banker with 48 year of experience. He has been Chief Executive
of various Banks and DFIs for the last over 18 years.

MOHAMMAD SOHAIL KHAN RAJPUT
Director — Representing Government of Sindh

Mr. Rajput is presently Finance Secretary, Government of Sindh. He remained Special Finance Secretary, Government of
Sindh, Director Thar Coal and Power Projects, assisted by World Bank, Director National Commission for Human
Development, Consultant, World Bank, Washington DC and other key posts of Government of Sindh.

SYED SHAHNAWAZ NADIR SHAH

Director — Representing Government of Sindh

Chief Investment Specialist of Fund Management House in the Finance Department, Government of Sindh. Director in
Sindh Leasing, Sindh Modaraba and other companies as a nominee from the Government of Sindh. Has vast experience
of working in various financial institutions. Holds MBA from Institute of Business Administration.

MUHAMMAD NAIMUDDIN FAROOQUI

Director

Mr. Farooqui has been Chiefl Exccutive of Sindh Bank Limited, Sindh Leasing Company Limited and Orix Investment Bank
of Pakistan. He holds MBA from Texas Sothern University, Houston, USA and has vast experience of working in foreign
and local financial institutions.

SHAMSUDDIN KHAN
Director

Mr. Khan is presently associated with Sindh Bank as Company Secretary and Head of Legal Affairs. He is a Fellow of
Institute of Bankers Pakistan and possesses Master’s Degree in Law with over 48 years of experience in financial sector.
He is also a Board member of Sindh Microfinance Bank.

AHMED SALAHUDDIN
Director

Chief Executive Officer in Health eConnex (PvL.) Ltd., a TPA Company. Mr. Ahmed is MBA and ACII, Chartered Insurer,
Associate in Claims and Mariner, has over 25 years of experience in the insurance industry including as Chief Executive
of PICIC Insurance.

AKHTAR ALI KHAN
Director

Mr. Khan is an advisor to Sindh Bank Limited. He is an Associate of Institute of Bankers’ in Pakistan with over 50 years
experience in the financial sector.
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The Directors of your company are pleased to present their report along with the Accounts and Auditors’ Report for the year ended
December 31, 2015.

Operating Results
This was the first full operational year under review, vour Company wrote gross insurance premium of Rs. 73.99 million in various
classes of business, whereas, net premium revenue stood at Rs. 20.5 million. Investment income mainly contributed to the profit of

the Company by Rs. 115.15 million.

Below are key financial figures for last two year:

2015 2014
Gross Premium 73,994,813 2.319,819
Net Premium Revenue 20,508,168 (458.499)
Underwriting Results (15,784,898) (6,389,734
Investment Income 115,154,090 61,538,068
Protit before tax 97.162,681 47,798,630
Profit after tux 67.318,967 32,025,082
Earning per share 1.35 0.64

Country Review

We hold an upbeat economic outlook on expected weakness in commodity prices over the next 12 months, further progress on
structural reforms, a stable political and security situation, and tangible development on CPEC related projects. The GDP growth is
anticipated to accelerate to 5.0% in 2016 driven by lower input costs, enhanced houschold income, benign interest rates outlook, and
a modest pick-up in private and public sector investment activity, particularly due to expected progress on CPEC related
development ventures. The headline inflation 1s expected to rise during the next year owing to reversal of the base effect, bottoming
out of commodity prices, levying of new taxes and some PKR depreciation. External accounts position is also expected to remain
comfortable due to a manageable trade deficit, healthy remittances, steady multilateral loan, and rising CPEC related inflows from
China.

Insurance Sector Review
The insurance industry in Pakistan is relatively small compared to its peers in the region. Pakistan remains the classic example of a
market where insurance is well established but where most people remain uninsured. The strong growth in premiums of the private

sector during 2015 indicates insurance market is showing healthy growth for the coming vears.

This growth has come from the provision of new products to existing users. New infrastructure projects, including CPEC and energy
have provided support to the growth. It is estimated that premium income of the sector will rise by 9-10% annually.

‘Window Takaful Operations

Securitics and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through circular in 2014 invites conventional insurance companics to start
Window Takatul Operations under Takaful Rules, 2012,

Sindh Insurance has applied for Window Takaful Operators. We are hopeful to obtain permission during second guarter of the coming
year.

Premium Portfolio

[ Fire & Property Damage 17%
Marine, Aviation & Transport 1%

OMotor 18%

O Aceident & Health  47%

W Miscellancous  17%
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Investment Income

The investment income of the Company has shown a substantial increase of 88% i.e. Rs. 115.15 million in year 2015 as compared to
Rs. 61.31 million in year 2014, This increase mainly contributed by the capital gains of Ry, 78.43 million to the investment income,

Reinsurance

During first half of the year, Hannover Re and PRCL were main contributors and from third quarter of the year, the Company further
obtained the reinsurance support from Saudi Re, Korcan Re and Trust Re. The Company also obtained the retakaful support from Swiss
Re for Window Takaful Operations.

Product Development

The Company is working on development of two new products i.e. Travel Insurance and Travel Guarantee Insurance. The Company
has made reinsurance treaty arrangement with Hannover Re and introduced crop loan insurance. The Company will look into balanced
product mix, as cuwrrently major business are generating from Health and Motor Business.

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

The Board is aware of its responsibilities under the law and the Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 issued
by the Sccurities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Accordingly, the Board is pleased to state as follows:

@  The Board has complied with the relevant principles of corporate governance, and has also identilied the rules that have not been
complied with and reasons for such non-compliance.

@  The financial statcments prepared by the management of the Company, presented fairly its statc of affairs, the result of its operations,
cash flows and changes in equity.

Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained.

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and accounting estimates
are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

®  The Directors recognize their responsibility to establish and maintain sound system of internal control, which is regularly reviewed
and monitored.

® International Financial Reporting Standards and International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed
in preparation of financial statements and any departure there from has been adequately disclosed and cxplained.

There are no doubts upon the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement ol shareholding in the Company as on December 31, 2015 is included in the Report.
@  The value of investment in the Provident Fund as on December 31, 2015 was Rs. 988,079/~
Board Meetings

@  During the year, four (4) meetings of the Board of Directors were held and attendance position was as under:

Serial No. Name of Director Number of Meetings Attended
01 Muhammad Bilal Sheikh 04
02 Mohammad Sohail Khan Rajput 03
03 Muhammad Naimuddin Farooqui 04
04 Syed Shahnawaz Nadir Shah 04
05 Shamsuddin Khan 04
06 Ahmed Salahuddin 01*
07 Akhtar Ali Khan 02 *

* These Directors were elected on April 28, 2015,

Leave of absence was granted to the Directors who could not attend the Board meetings.
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Future Outlook

With rating upgrade to “A” Sindh Insurance is poised to increase its market share while maintaining its prudent underwriting policy.
Year 2016 will be a very important year for the company as we have to consolidate our gains and emerge as a prominent market player.
We are aware of the challenges we might face but we have set ambitious goals as we believe that the strength of our sponsors and the
associated companies will help us in achieving our targets.

The Company is working on Sindh Engro Coal Mining Company Limited for providing insurance cover on extraction of coul in Thar
for generation of energy. The Company is also working with the Government of Sindh for providing personal accident cover to adult
citizens of Sindh.

The Company will soon open branch in Lahore and smart branches in Multan, Hyderabad, Sukkur and Gwader.

Insurer Financial Strength (IFS) Rating

The Pakistan Credit Rating Company Limited (PACRA) has upgraded the Insurer Financial Strength (1FS) rating of Sindh Insurance
Limited from “A-" (A minus) to “A” (Single A). The rating denotes strong capacity to meet policyholders and contract obligations.

Statement of Code of Conduct

The Board has adopted the statement of Code of Conduct. All employees have been conveyed of the same who have signed the statement
and are required to observe these rules of conduct in relation to business and regulations.

Material Changes

There have been no material changes since December 31, 2015 and the Company has not entered into any commitment, which would
affects its financial position at that date.

Dividend
No dividend was declared in period ended December 31, 2015.
Pattern of Shareholding

The pattern of shareholding, as required by section 236 of the Companies Ordinance 1984 and Public Sector Companies (Corporate
Governance) Rules, 2013 is enclosed.

Auditors

The Audit Committee has recommended the appointment of external auditor as per regulations.

Acknowledgement

The directors would like to take this opportunity to express their sincere gratitude to the Government of Sindh, Ministry of Commerce,
Government of Pakistan, Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), Insurance Association of Pakistan (1AP) and Sindh
Bank Limited lor their continued guidance and support.

Further, the Board also wish to record its appreciation for the staff and policyholders for their dedication and support.

For and on behalf of the Board ol Directors

el

M./ A' aisal Siddiqui

Chief Executive Officer

March 31, 2016
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2015 2014
Written Premium 73,994,813 2,319,819
Earned Premium 31,684,584 230,287
Net Premium Revenue 20,508,168 (458.499)
Underwriting Result (15,784,898) (6,389,734)
Investment & Other Income 129,542,800 61,538,068
Profit / (Loss) before tax 97,162,681 47,798.630
Profit / (Loss) after tax 67,318,967 32,025,082
Paid-up Capital 500,000,000 500,000,000
Shareholders’ Equity 599,344,049 532,025,082
Breakup Value per Share (RS.) 11.99 10.64
Investment & properties 526,309,909 355,227,003
Cash & Bank Balances 53,336,642 135,337,879
Total Assets Book Value 676,773,510 543,789,965
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Notice is hereby given that the Second Annual General Meeting of the sharcholders of Sindh Insurance Limited will be held on
Thursday, April 28, 2016 at 10:00 am at the registered office of the Company at 1st Floor, Tmperial Court, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road,
Karachi, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To confirm minutes of the First Annual General Meeting held on April 28, 2015,

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Accounts for the year ended December 31, 2015 alongwith Directors” and Auditors’
Report thereon.

3. To appoint Auditors for the year 2016 and fix their remuneration, Retiring Auditor M/s Riaz Ahmed & Company, Chartered
Accountants being eligible, have oflered themselves [or re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4, To consider, adopt and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification the following resolution as Special Resolution:
RESOLVED that the Company’s Authorized Capital be increased from Rs. 500 million to Rs. 1500 million.

RESOLVED FURTHER that the clause (v) of Memorandum of Association and clause TV (4) of Articles of Association related
to the authorized capital of the Company be and hereby amended.

5. Totransact any other business that may be placed before the meeting with the permission of the Chair.

Statement under scction 160(1)(b) of the Companics Ordinance 1984 in respect of special business is being sent to the members
alongwith the notice.

Karachi By Order of the Board
March 31, 2016 Nadeem Akhter
Company Secretary
NOTES:
1) A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint another memberfany other person as his/her proxy to attend and vote.

2) Duly completed instrument of proxy, and the other authority under which it is signed, must be lodged with the Company Secrelary at the company’s
registered office Ist Floor, Imperial Court, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Karachi, at least 48 hours before the time of the mecting.

3 Share Transfer Books ol the Company will remain closed from April 28, 2016 o May 4, 2016 (both days inclusive).

4) Any change of address of Member should be immediately notified to the Company’s registered office 1st Floor, Imperial Court, Dr. Ziauddin
Ahmed Road, Karachi.

5) The CDC account holder will further have to ollow the under-mentioned guidelines as laid down by the Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan.

A, For attending the meeting:

i, In Case of individuals. the account holder or sub-accounts holder and / or the person whose securities are in group account and their
registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall authenticate his identity by showing his original computerized national identity
card (CNIC) or original passport at the time of attending the neeting.

i, Incase of corporate entity the Board of Directors resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced
at the time of the nmeeting.

B.  For appointing proxics:

i Incase of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities are in group account and their registration
details arc uploaded as per account and their registration details are uploaded as per the regulations, shall submit the proxy form accordingly.

il.  The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, address and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form.
i, Allested copies of CNIC or the passport
iv.  The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of meeting,

v, In case of corporate entity, the board of Director’s resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature shall be submitted along with
proxy lform (o the company.

STATEMENT OF MATERITAL FACTS UNDER SECTION 160(1) (b) OF THE COMPANIES
ORDINANCE, 1984 REGARDING THE SPECIAL BUSINESS

The Company is planning to increase its paid-up capital through (initial public offer) TPO of shares. The authorized capital is being increased with
consideration of future needs to cover the issuance of shares. The related clauses of authorized capital in Memorandum and Article of Association are

also amended.
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Statement of Compliance with the Public Sector Companies
(Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

Name of Company: SINDH INSURANCE LIMITED

Name of the line ministry: Ministry of Finance, Government of Sindh

For the year ended: 31 December 2015

L. This statement is being presented to comply with the Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 (hereinafter

called “the Rules™) issued for the purpose of establishing a framework of good governance, whereby a public sector company
is managed in compliance with the best practices of public sector governance.

1L The company has complied with the provisions of the Rules in the following manner:
;' Provision of the Rules RuleNo. | Y [N
0.
I; The independent directors meet the criteria of independence, as defined under the Rules 2(d) o
2 The Board has the requisite percentage of independent directors.
At present Board includes:
Date of
Category Names Appointment
Independent Directors s v
Executive Directors Muhammad Faisal Siddiqui 28-04-2015 30)
Non-Executive Directors Muhammad Bilal Sheikh 28-04-2015 i
Muhammad Sohail Khan Rajput 28-04-2015
Muhammad Naimuddin Farooqi 28-04-2015
Shamsuddin Khan 28-04-2015
Syed Shahnawaz Nadir 28-04-2015
Ahmed Salahuddin 28-04-2015
Akhtar Ali Khan 28-04-2015
3. No casual vacancy occurred in the board during the year. 3(4) v
4. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five public sector
companies and listed companics simultaneously, except their subsidiaries. 33 v
3 The appointing authorities have applied the fit and proper criteria given in the Annexure in making
nominations of the persons for election as board members under the provisions of the Ordinance. 3(7) v
6. The chairman of the board is working separately from the chief executive of the Company. 41) 4
7. The chairman has been elected from amongst the independent directors. 4(4) v
8. The Board has evaluated the candidates for the position of the chief executive on the basis of the fit 52 /
and proper criteria as well as the guidelines specified by the commission. 3@

)
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(a) The Company has prepared a “Code ol Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate sieps have
been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting
policies and procedures, including posting the samc on the company’s website.
{(www.sindhinsuranceltd.com)

(b} The Board has set in place adequate systems and controls for the identification and redressal
of grievances arising [rom unethical practices.

3(4)

10.

The Board has established a system of sound internal control, to ensure compliance with the
fundamental principles of probity and propriety; objectivity, integrity and honesty; and relationship
with the stakeholders, in the manner prescribed in the Rules.

5(5)

L1.

The Board has developed and enforced an appropriate conflict of interest policy to lay down
circumstances or considerations when a person may be deemed to have actual or potential conflict
of interest, and the procedure for disclosing such interest.

5(5)(b)(ii)

The Board has developed and implemented a policy on anti-corruption to minimize actual or

perceived corruption in the company.

5(5)(b)(vi)

(a) The Board has ensured equality of opportunity by establishing open and fair procedures

for making appointments and for determining terms and conditions of service.

(b) A Committee has been formed to investigating deviations from the company’s code of conduct.

5(5)e)(i)

14.

The Board has ensured compliance with the law as well as the company’s internal rules and
procedures relating to public procurement, tender regulations, and purchasing and technical standards,
when dealing with suppliers of goods and services, in accordance with the SPPRA Rules.

S(5){(c)(iii)

The Board has developed a vision and mission statement, corporate strategy and significant policies
of the company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on
which they were approved or amended has been maintained.

5(6)

16.

The Board has quantified the outlay of any action in respect of any service delivered or goods sold
by the company as a public service obligation, and has submitted its request for appropriate
compensation to the Government for consideration,

5(8)

N/A

(a) The Board has met at least four times during the period.

(b} Written notices of the board meetings, along with agenda and working papers. were circulated
at least seven days before the meetings,

(c) The minutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded and circulated.

o(1)
6(2)

6(3)

The Board has carried out performance evaluation of its members, including the chairman and the
chief executive, on the basis of a process. based on specified criteria, developed by it. The board
has also monitored and assessed the performance of senior management on annual/half-

yearly/quarterly.
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The Board has reviewed and approved the related party transactions placed beflore it aller
recommendations of the audit committee. A party wise record of transactions entered into with the
related partics during the year has been maintained.

The Board has approved the profit and loss account for, and balance sheet as at the end of, the first,
second and third quarter of the period as well as financial period end, and has placed the annual
financial statements on the company’s website. Monthly accounts are also prepared and circulated
amongst the board members.

21

All the Board members underwent an orientation course arranged by the company (o apprise them
of the material developments and information as specified in the Rules.

11 v

22

(a) The board has formed the requisite committees, as specified in the Rules,

(b) The Committees were provided with written term of reference defining their duties, authorities
and composition.

(c) The minutes of the meetings of the committees were circulated to all the board members.

(d) The committees were chaired by the following non-executive directors:

Committee Number of Name of Chair
members

Audit Committee 3 Muhammad Naimuddin Farooqi

Risk Management 3 Mohammad Sohail Khan Rajput
Committee

Human Resources 3 Muhammad Bilal Sheikh
Committee

Procurement Committee 3 Muhammad Bilal Sheikh

Nomination Committee 3 Mohammad Sohail Khan Rajput

23;

The board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Chief Internal
Auditor, with their remuneration and terms and conditions ol employment, and as per their prescribed
qualifications.

13/14 v

The company has adopted International Financial Reporting Standards notified by the Commission
under clause (1) of sub-section (3) of section 234 of the Ordinance.

16 b

25:

The directors’ report for this period has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the
Ordinance and the Rules and fully described salient matters required to be disclosed.

26.

The directors. CEO and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the company other than
that disclosed in the pattern of sharcholding.

27,

A formal and transparent procedure for fixing the remuneration packages of individual directors has
been set in place. The annual report of the company contains criteria and details of remuneration of
each director.

19 d
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28. | The financial statements of the company were duly endorsed by the chief executive and chief financial 20 J
officer. before approval of the board.
29. | The board has formed an audit committee, with defined and written terms of reference, and having
the following members:
Professional
Name of Member Category b s
Background 91 v/
Muhammad Naimuddin Farooqi Non-Executive Banker
Mohammad Sohail Khan Rajput Non-Executive Finance Secretary Sindh
Syed Shahnawaz Nadir Non-Executive Investment Specialist
The chief executive and chairman of the board are not members of the audit committee.
30. | The board has set up an effective internal audit function, which has an audit charter, duly approved - /
by the audit committee. and which worked in accordance with the applicable standards.
31. | The company has appointed its external auditors in line with the requirements envisaged under the 7
Rules.
32. The external auditors of the company have confirmed that the firm and all its partners are in compliance
with international federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of Ethics as applicable in v/
Pakistan.
33, The external auditors have not been appointed to provide non-audit services and the auditors have e
confirmed that they have observed applicable guidelines issued by I[FAC in this regard.
34. | The company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the Rules. v

(\Nﬁ \00@9

Muhammad Faisal Siddiqui
Chief Executive Officer

[
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SCHEDULE II
SEE Paragraph 2(3)

Explanation for Non-Compliance with the
Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

We confirm that all other material requirements envisaged in the Rules have been complied with (except for the
following, toward which reasonable progress is being made by the company to see compliance by the end of next
accounting year).

2 Rule/sub: Reasons for non-compliance Fut f acti
o uture course of action

No. rule no. E

L. 2(d), 3(2) No independent director is nominated by Company will request Government of Sindh to
Government of Sindh in the Comany during the nominate independent director in the Board of
year Director for compliance of said rules.

2. 3(5) One of the directors, Mr. Mohammad Sohail SECP has allowed relaxation from the said rules
Khan Rajput is director in more than 5 upto December 31, 2016.
companies, who is a Government Nominee
and currently is Finance Secretary,
Government of Sindh.

3. 44 The Chairman being nominee of Government SECP has allowed relaxation from the said rules
of Sindh is a professional banker with upto December 31, 2016.
unblemished tract record who was elect by
the Board of Directors to Formulate the
Company on a fast track basis.

4. 5(5)(e)(ii) Committee [or investigating deviations [rom Said Committee is not mandatory for
the Company’s code of conduct compliance of the rules.

s 12 None of the meeting of any committee was held Company is makeing stern elforts to conduct
during the year except one mecting of human committee meetings in upcoming year.
resource committee.

M/ hammad Faisal Siddiqui
éh:ef Executive Officer
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REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE PUBLIC SECTOR COMPANIES
(CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) RULES, 2013

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Public Sector
Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 (the Rules) prepared by the Board of Directors of SINDH INSURANCE
LIMITED (the Company) for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The responsibility for compliance with the Rules is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility
is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether the Statement of Compliance
reflects the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Rules and report if it does not and to
highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Rules. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Rules.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and
internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to
consider whether the Board of Directors” statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an
opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Rules require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval its related party transactions distinguishing
between transactions carried out on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions and transactions
which are not executed at arm’s length price and recording proper justification for using such alternate pricing
mechanism. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of
the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not
carried out any procedures to determine whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price
or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the ‘Statement of Compliance’
does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the best practices contained
in the Rules as applicable to the Company for the vear ended 31 December 2015.

R h &

RIAZ AD & COMPANY

Chartere ccountants
LY

Name of engagement partner:
Muhammad Hamid Jan

Date: 31 March 2016
KARACHI
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We have audited the annexed financial statements comprising of:

(i) balance sheet;
(ii) profit and loss account;
(iii) statement of comprehensive income;
(iv) statement of changes in equity;
(v} statement of cash flows;
(vi) statement of premiums;
(vii) statement of claims;
(viii) statement of expenses; and

(ix) statement of investment income

of SINDH INSURANCE LIMITED (”the Company™) as at 31 December 2015 together with the notes forming part thereof, for
the vear then ended.

It is the responsibility of the company’s management to establish and maintain a system of internal control, and prepare and
present the [inancial statements in conlormity with the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan
and the requirements of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 (XXXIX of 2000} and the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of 1984).
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International standards on auditing as applicable in Pakistan. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the lnancial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as, evaluating the overall financial statements presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion:

a) proper books ol accounts have been kept by the company as required by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies
Ordinance, 1984;

b) the financial statements together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Insurance Ordinance,
2000 and the Companics Ordinance, 1984, and accurately rcflect the books and records of the
company and are further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied except for as disclosed in Note 2.9
with which we concur;

c) the financial statements together with the notes thereon, present fairly, in all material respects, the state of the company’s
affairs as at 31 December 2015 and of the profit. its comprehensive income. its cash flows and changes in equity for the
year then ended in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and give the information
required to be disclosed by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Ordinance. 1984: and

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

oo

RIAAAHMAD & COMPANY

Chartelred| Accountants

\
Name of effgagement partner:
Muhammad Hamid Jan

Date: 31 March 2016

KARACHI
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2015 2014
Note Rupees Rupees

Share capital and reserve

Authorised share capital 3.1 500,000,000 500,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 32 500,000,000 500,000,000

Retained eamings 99,344,049 32.025.082

TOTAL EQUITY 599,344,049 532,025,082

Underwriting provisions

Provision for outstanding claims (including IBNR) 7,486,182 115,991

Provision for unearned premium 44,399,761 2,089,532

Commission income unearned 18 2,544,414 409,809
54,430,357 2615332

Deferred Liabilities

Deferred tax 4 1,925,727 1,463,032

Creditors and accruals

Premium received in advance 77,066 -

Amount due to other insurers/reinsurers 5 15,545,498 2,959,552

Other creditors and accruals 6 5,450,813 3,376,641

Taxation - provision less payments - 1.350.326
21,073,377 7,686,519

TOTAL LIABILITIES 77,429,461 11,764,883

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 7

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 676,773,510 543,789,965

The annexed notes from 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statcments.

b . f_"’ M\/ ) /\p / M{{TV—
Chairman Director Director (Zfﬂlcf Exccutive Officc
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2015 2014
Note Rupees Rupees
ASSETS
Cash and bank deposits 8
Cash and other equivalents 55,637 49372
Current and other accounts 23,281,005 35,288,507
Deposits maturing within 12 months 30,000,000 100,000,000
53,336,642 135,337,879
Investments 9 526,309,909 355,227,003
Current assets
Premium due but unpaid 10 27,508,448 2,102,755
Due from other insurers/reinsurers 11 3,388,046 447,485
Accrued investment income 12 13,512,476 18,534,001
Re-insurance recoveries against outstanding claims 1,415,042 -
Loan to employees 119,833 -
Advance income tax (net of provision) 4,607,577 -
Deferred commission expense 1,311,821 443 811
Prepayments 13 13,809 468 4,669,164
Sundry receivables 14 3,378,446 1,650,509
69,051,157 27.847.725
Fixed assets - tangible & intangible 15
Owned
Leaschold improvements 11,163,619 11,674,336
TFurniture & fixtures 2,236,325 1.902.549
Office equipment 5,695,844 5.997.718
Computers 812,769 649,713
Vehicles 5,428,212 5,105,217
Intangible asset - computer software 2,739,033 47,825
28,075,802 25.377.358
TOTAL ASSETS 676,773,510 543.789.965

The annexed notes from 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

et M\/ : 9»“@ .*U'Mtfiv
Chairman Director Director él-{ief Executive Officel;
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For the period

: Marine, For the year Trom 20
Fire and P Accident Miscella- ended 31 December
property mm’" Motor ynd Health  neous Treaty  pocember 20131031
damage transport 2s December
2014

Note:  serssasssr s e SR A PRRR s Rupetss=rommsrmnms s o e e SR e R e R s
Nel premium revenue 16 629842 157.550 4,667,324 13,110,835 1.942.507 - 20,508,168 {458.499)
Net claims (75.047) 4717 (3460.468)  (9.042,573) (672.017) - (13,254,822) {115,991}
Management expenses 17 (4.124768)  (117438) (44152200 (11.282,828)  (3.952.993) - (23,893,24T)  (5,819,614)
Net commission 02,912 (44,1807 (32.339) (6,736) 235,346 - 855,003 4,370
Underwriting results (2,867,061) (8,785)  (3,240,703)  (7.221,282)  (2.447.067) - (15,784,898) (6,389,734)
Investment income 115,154,090 61,317,138
Other income 9 14,388,710 220,930
113,757,902 533,148,034
General and administration expenses 20 (16,595,221)  (7.349.404)
Profit before tax 97,162,681 47,798,630
Taxation 21 (29.843,714) (15,773,548)
Profit after tax 67318967 32,025,082

Prolit and loss appropriation account:

Balance at beginning of the year / period 32,025,082 -
Profit for the year / perind 67,318,967 32,025,082
Balance unappropriated profit at the end of the year / period 99,344,049 32,025,082
Earnings per share - hasic and diluted 22 1.35 0.64

The annexed notes from 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

o
= / O i/ bl

RN i
Chairman Director Dircctor (Zfﬂ_icf Exccutive Officcil'
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

For the period

For the year from 20 December

De:e[:‘(:;g"szl(” 5 Dei{;rlmfbg; 3('1 14
Rupees Rupees
Profit for the year / period 67,318,967 32,025,082
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
[tems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss account - -
[tems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss account g -
Total comprehensive income for the year / period 67,318,967 32,025,082

The annexed notes from 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chairman Director

Gfl'{ief‘ Executive Office‘t'

@)
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

For the period from
For the year ended 20 pDecember 2013

31 December 2015 5 31 December

2014

Rupees Rupees
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
a) Underwriting activities
Premiums received 48,666,186 217,064
Reinsurance premiums paid (11,008,250) (487.823)
Claims paid (7,471,804) -
Reinsurance and other recoveries received 172,131 -
Commissions paid (1,976,344) (61.833)
Commissions received 3,822,112 -
Other underwriting payments (22,495,809) (1,718.877)
Net cash used in underwriting activities 9,708,222 (2,051.473)
b) Other operating activities
Income tax paid (35,338,922) (12,960.189)
Management and administrative expenses paid (10,834,297) (9,259.831)
Others (3.475,270) 220,930
Net cash flows used in other operating activities {49,648,489) (21.999,090)
Net cash used in operating activities (39,940,267) (24,050.563)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Profit / return received on investment 45,217,449 42,842.770
Other income received 13,242,834 -
Investment related expenses paid (14,950) (7.414)
Payments for investments (2,156,522.415) (629,489.224)
Proceeds from disposal of investments 2,060,412,624 274,210,001
Proceeds from disposal of fixed asscts 1,475,000 -
Advance for purchasc of vehicle - (1.,627.500)
Fixed capital expenditure (5,871,512) (26.540.191)
Net cash used in investing activities (42,060,970) (340,611,558)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
[ssue of shares - ‘ 500,000,000
Net cash flow from {inancing activities - 500,000,000
Net cash flows from all activities (82,001,237) 135,337,879
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 135,337,879 -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 53,336,642 135,337,879
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

31 DECEMBER 31 DECEMBER

2015 2014
Rupees Rupees

Reconciliation to profit and loss account

Operating cash flows (39,940,267) (24.050.563)
Depreciation on fixed assets (2,900,689) (1,143,326)
Amortization of intangibles (592.906) (19,507)
Provision for Worker Welfare Fund - (977,830
Investment related expenses (14,950) (7.414)
Income tax paid 35,338,922 12,960,189
Increase in assets other than cash 43,244,880 7,686,224
Increase in liabilities (66,552,209) (7.973,675)
Investment income 115,169,040 61,324,552
Other income 13,410,860 -
Profit hefore taxation 97.162,681 47,798,630

Definition of cash

Cash comprises of cash in hand, policy stamps, cheques in hand, bank balances and other deposits which are readily convertible
to cash and which are used in the cash management function on a day-to-day basis.

Cash for the purpose of the statement of cash flows consists of:

31 DECEMBER 31 DECEMBER

2015 2014
. Rupees Rupees
Cash and other equivalents
- Cash in hand 31,463 36,586
- Policy stamps in hand 24,174 12.786
55,637 49,372
Current and saving accounts
- Current accounts - -
- Savings accounts 23,281,005 35,288,507
23,281,005 35,288,507
Deposits maturing within 12 months
- Term deposit - local currency 30,000,000 100,000,000
53,336,642 135,337,879

The annexed notes from | to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chairman Director Director éﬂief Executive Ofﬁcei;



. s _
SINDH [NSUR ANCE

Pownr To Tk PropLr

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
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Issued, subscribed Retai Total
and paid up etained shareholders’
share capital carnings equity

______________________________ RUPERS: wocmiomms i Sede scismse 5

Balance as at December 20, 2013 - = s
Profit after tax for the period ended December 31, 2014 - 32,025,082 32,025,082
Other Comprehensive income - - -
Total comprehensive income - 32,025,082 32,025,082
Transactions with owners

Issuance of ordinary shares during the period 500,000,000 - 500,000,000
Balance as at December 31, 2014 500,000,000 32,025,082 532,025,082
Profit after tax for the year ended December 31, 2015 - 67,318,967 04,156,639
Other Comprehensive income - - -
Total comprehensive income - 67,318,967 64,156,639
Balance as at December 31, 20135 500,000,000 99,344,049 396,181,721

) @ Wbt

(ff]{ief Executive Office[

Chairman Director
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STATEMENT OF PREMIUMS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Business underwritten inside Pakistan

Net premivm revenue

Unearned Premium Prepaid reinsurance Fnr_the perind
Class Premium reserve Premium Reinsurance premium ceded Reinsurance from 20
written _ earned ceded __ expenses FPortheyear  December
ended 31 2013 to 31
Opening Closing Opening Closing December December
2015 a4
———————————————————————————————————————————— Rupees:=cs-psomrssosrmnmssosnsrsniomism S anrnniss
Direct and facultative
Fire and properly damage 12773062 1636421 85491854 5918529 11382500 1550353 7644256 5288687 629,842 9447
Marine, aviation and transport 363,694 213,482 193,359 IRIAIT 40,618 207,571 21,022 226,267 157,550 1,253
Mator 13,673,462 239629 6445973 69067118 1.334.611 1,000,667 35484 2299794 4667324 (469,199)
Accident & health 34,941,703 - 21,830,848 13,110,855 - - - - 13,110,855 -
Miscellaneous 12,241,992 - 6,937,727 5,304,265 7,895,816 - 4534148 336lp68 0 1,942,597 -
Sub total 73994813 2,089,532 44399761 31,684,584 200653635 2758591 12235810 11176416 20,508,168  (458.499)
Treaty
Proportional - - - - - - - - - -
Sub total - - - - - - - - - -
Grand total 73,994,813 2,089,532 44,399,761 31,684,584 20,653,635 2,758,591 12,235810 11,176,416 20,508,168  (438,499)

Note: The Company does not underwrite business outside Pakistan.

The annexed notes from 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

(Zfﬂief Executive Officeil'

Chairman Director
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STATEMENT OF CLAIMS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Business underwritten inside Pakistan

Net claim expense
For the period

Reinsurance  Reinsurance and other Reinsurance For the vear

Class Total claims ~ Outstanding claims _ﬂajm-‘f_ and other  recoveries in respect of  and other  ended 31 S;‘:E}ﬁil
paid EXpenses recoveries outstanding claims recoveries Dwem_hcr 2013 1031
T—— reeved <~ revemue B o
Opening Closing Opening Closing 2014
-------------------------------------------- Biptis mnrrr s s s s s e s e s e
Direct and facultative
Fire and property damage 198 958 88085 521,199 631,172 159,166 - 396,959 556,125 75,047 88,985
Marine, aviation and transport - 13468 18,185 4,717 - - - - 4,717 13,468
Motor 1,047,256 13,538 3437715 4471433 12,963 - 998,000 1,010965  3.460,468 13,538
Accident & health 6,225,590 - 2816983 9.042,573 - - - - 9,042,573
Miscellaneous - - 692,100 692,100 - - 20,083 20,083 672,017
Sub total 7471804 115991  7.486,182 14,841,995 172,131 - 1415042 1,587.173 13,254,822 115,991
Treaty
Proportional - - - - - - -
Sub total - 5 5 - - - #
Grand total 7471,804 115991 7,486,182 14,841,995 172131 - 1415042 1,587,173 13,254,822 115,991

Note: The Company does not underwrite business outside Pakistan.

The annexed notes from | to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chairman Director éﬂicf Executive Oﬂ'iccit'
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STATEMENT OF EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Business underwritten inside Pakistan

Nel underwriling expense

Commission Deferred commission Net Other .. Commission  For the vear  For the period
Class paid or commission management Underwriting from ended 31 Irivm 20)
payable expense expense expense reinsurance  December  December 2013
Opening Closing (Note 17) 2015 1031 %ﬂ:mhur
———————————————————————————————————————————— L Bt et ot etk Rt ot R et i b
Direct and facultative
Fire and properly damage 1,465,466 387,327 1,215,875 636,918 4,124,768 4,761,686 1,339,830 3,421,856 4463483
Murine, avialion and lransporl 59,364 37,046 31,514 64,896 117,438 182,334 20,716 161,618 675,728
Motor 154,730 19,438 57,729 116,439 4,415,220 4.531.659 84,100 4,447,559 60,404
Accident & health 7,700 - 964 6,736 11,282,828 11,289,564 - 11,289,564
Miscellanous 13,254 - 3,739 7,515 3,952,993 3,960,508 242,861 3,717,647
Sub-total 1,700,514 443,811 1,311,821 832,504 23,893,247 24,725,751 1,687,507 23,038,244 5.819,614
Treaty
Proportional = = - * - - -
Sub total - - = . n - -
Grand total 1,700,514 443,811 1,311,821 832,504 23,893,247 24,725,751 1,687,507 23,038,244 5.819,614

Note: The Company does not underwrite business outside Pakistan.

The annexed notes from | to 33 form an integral part of these [inancial statements.

)
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For the period
For the year from 20
ended 31 December 2013
December 2015 to 31 December
2014
Rupees Rupees
Income from non-trading investments
Held-to-maturity
Return on Government Securities 6,359,686 4,158,109
Return on other fixed income sceurities and deposits 1,676,992 43,283,933
8,036,678 47,442,062
Available-for-sale
Return on Government Securities 24,736,332 3,592,330
Dividend income on available for sale investments 5,694,587 -
Gain on sale of available-for-sale investments 78,432,531 10,290,160
Impairment loss (1,731,088) -
107,132,362 13,882,490
115,169,040 61,324,552
Investment related expenses (14,950) (7.414)
Net investment income 115,154,090 61,317,138

The annexed notes from 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chairman Director Xecutive Ofﬁce{l'

&)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

1 THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Sindh Insurance Limited (the Company) was incorporated under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, as a Public Limited
Company on 20 December 2013 and obtained the certiticate of commencement of business on 22 September 2014.
All shares of the Company are beneficially held by Government of Sindh directly and through nominee directors.
The Company is engaged in the non-life insurance business comprising of fire, marine, motor, aviation, engineering,
transportation, accident and health etc. The registered office and principal place of business of the Company is situated
at st Floor, Imperial Court, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Karachi. The Company operates only in Pakistan

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
accounting policies have been consistently applied during the year unless otherwise stated.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION
a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Repoting Standards (IFRS) issued
by the International Accounting Standards Boards as are notified under the Companies Ordinance 1984, provisions
of and directives issued under Companies Ordinance 1984, the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and SEC (Insurance)
Rules, 2002. In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, Insurance
Ordinance, 2000 and SEC (Insurance) Rules, 2002 shall prevail.

The SECP has allowed the insurance companies to defer the application of International Accounting Standard — 39
(IAS-39) “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement™ in respect of valuation of “available-for-sale
investments”. Accordingly, the requirements of IAS-39, to the extent allowed by SECP have not been considered in
the preparation of these financial statements. The effect of such departure from the requirement of IAS - 39 is disclosed
in Note 9.5.

b)  Basis of presentation

These financial statements have been prepared on the format of financial statements issued by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through Securities and Exchange Commission (Insurance) Rules, 2002
[SEC (Insurance) Rules, 2002], vide SRO 938 dated 12 December 2002.

¢) Accounting convention

These tinancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except certain investments which
are stated at lower of cost and market value. Accrual basis of accounting has been used except for cash flow information.

d) Functional and Presentation Currency

[tems included in these financial statements are measured using the currency of primary economic environment in
which the Company operates. These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency.

e)  Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and income and expenses. It also requires management to exercise judgment in application of
its accounting policies. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates and assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.
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The arcas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or arecas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to these financial statements or judgment was exercised in application ol accounting policies, are as [ollows:

i)  Provision for outstanding claims including claims incurred but not reported (IBNR)
Provision for liability in respect of unpaid reported claims is made on the basis of individual case estimates. Provision
for IBNR is based on the management's best estimate which takes into account the past trends, expected future patterns
of reporting of claims and the claims actually reported subsequent to the balance sheet date.

ii)  Provision for taxation

In making the estimates for income tax currently payable by the Company, the management takes into account the
current income tax law and the decisions ol appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

iii) Provision for doubtful receivables

The receivable balances are reviewed against any provision required for any doubtful balances on an ongoing basis.
The provision is made while taking into consideration expected recoveries, if any.

iv) Useful lives, patterns of economic benefits and impairments - Fixed assets and intangibles

Estimates with respect to residual values and useful lives and pattern of flow of economic benefits are based on the
analysis of the management of the Company. Further, the Company reviews the value of assets for possible impairment
on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in the future might affect the carrying amount of respective item with
a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

v)  Classification of investments

The Company classities its investments into "available-tfor-sale" and held-to-maturity" categories. The classification
is determined by management at initial recognition and depends on the purpose for which the investments are acquired.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the year in which estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that year, or in the year of revision and future years if the revision affects both current and future years.

f)  Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved standards that are effective in current year
and are relevant to the Company

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in the current
year

The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards are etfective for accounting
periods beginning on or after 01 January 2015;

- [AS 27 Separate financial statements(Amendments)

- IFRS 11 ‘Joint Arrangements

- IFRS 12 * Disclosure of interests in other entities(Amendments)
- IFRS 13 - Fair value measurement

There are certain other new and amended standards, interpretations and amendments that are mandatory for the
Company’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2015 but are considered not to be relevant or do not

have any significant effect on the Company’s operations and therefore not detailed in these financial statements.

g) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet
effective

The tollowing other standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards are effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2016;
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Effective date (accounting
periods beginning on or

after)
- IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement 1-Jan-2018
- IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts 1-Jan-2018
- IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements-Accounting for Acquisition of Interest in 1-Jan-2016
Joint Operation (Amendment)
- IFRS 14 — Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1-Jan-2016
- IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements Disclosure Initiative 1-Jan-2016
(Amendment)
- IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 intangible assets - 1-Jan-2016
Clarification of Acceptable Method of Depreciation and Amortization
(Amendment)
- 1AS 27-Separate Financial Statements—Equity Method in Separate 1-Jan-2016
Financial Statements (Amendment)
- Annual improvements 2014; IFRS 5, *Non-current assets held for sale 1-Jan-2016

and discontinued operations’. IFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments:
disclosures’, 1AS 19, *Employee benefits’. 1AS 34, *Interim financial
reporting”

There are other new and amended standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the Company’s accounting
periods beginning on or after 01 January 2016 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant
effect on the Company’s operations and are therefore not detailed in these financial statements.

The management anticipates that the adoption of the above standards, amendments and interpretations in future
periods, will have no material impact on the financial statements other than in presentation / disclosures.

2.2 Insurance contracts

Insurance contracts are those contracts where the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant insurance risk from
another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders il a specified uncertain [uture event
(the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for the remainder of
its life time, even if the insurance risk reduces signiticantly during this period, unless all rights and liabilities are
extinguished or expired.

Insurance contracts issued by the Company are generally classified in four basic categories i.e. Fire and property,
Marine, aviation and transport, Motor, Accident and Health and Miscellaneous and are issued to multiple types of
clients with business in engineering, automobiles, cement, power, textile, paper, agriculture, services and trading
sectors ete. and individuals as well. The tenure of these insurance contracts depends upon terms of the policies written
and vary accordingly.

- Fire and property insurance contracts generally cover the assets of the policy holders against damages by fire,
earthquake, riots and strike, explosion, atmospheric disturbance, flood, electric fluctuation and impact, burglary, loss
of profit followed by the incident of fire, contractor's all risk, errection all risk, machinery breakdown and boiler
damage etc.

- Marine aviation and transport insurance contracts generally provide cover for loss or damage to cargo while in transit
to and from foreign land and inland transit due to various insured perils including loss of or damage to carrying vessel

etc.
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- Motor insurance contracts provide indemnity for accidental damage to or loss of insured vehicle including loss of
or damage to third party and other comprehensive car coverage.

- Accident and Health insurance contracts mainly compensate hospitalization and out patient medical coverage to the
insured.

- Miscellaneous insurance contracts provide variety of coverage including cover against burglary, loss of cash in safe,
cash in transit and cash on counter, fidelity guarantee, personal accident, workmen compensation, travel and crop
etc.

In addition to direct insurance, the Company also participates in risks under co-insurance contracts from other
companies and also accepts risks through re-insurance inward by way of facultative acceptance on case to case basis
provided such risks are within the underwriting policies of the Company. The nature of the risks undertaken under
such arrangement is consistent with the risks in each class of business as stated above.

The Company neither issues investment contracts nor does it issue insurance contracts with discretionary participation
features (DPF).

2.2.1 Premium

Premium received / receivable under a policy is recognized as written from the date of attachment of the policy to
which it relates. Premium income under a policy is recognized over the period of insurance from inception to expiry
as follows:

(a) For direct business, evenly over the period of the policy;
(b) For proportional reinsurance business, evenly over the period of underlying insurance policies; and
(c) For non-proportional reinsurance business, in accordance with the pattern of the reinsurance service.

Where the pattern of incidence of risk varies over the period of the policy, premium is recognized as revenue in
accordance with the pattern of the incidence of risk.

Administrative surcharge i1s recognized as premium at the time the policies are written.

Provision for unearned premium represents the portion of premium written relating to the unexpired period of coverage
and is recognized as a liability by the Company. This liability is calculated by applying the twenty fourths method
as specified in the SEC (Insurance) Rules, 2002, for most of the policies issued for a period of one year. The remaining
policies issued the liability is calculated on prorata basis as to the unexpired period.

Receivables under insurance contracts are recognized when due, at the fair value of the consideration receivable less
provision for doubtful debts, If any. Provision for impairment on premium receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to original terms of
receivable. Receivables are also analyzed as per their ageing and accordingly provision is maintained on a systematic
basis.
2.2.2 Reinsurance ceded

The Company enters into reinsurance contracts in the normal course of business in order to limit the potential for
losses arising from certain exposures. Outward reinsurance premiums are accounted for in the same period as the
related premiums for the direct or accepted reinsurance business being reinsured.

Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to reinsurance companies. Amounts payable are estimated in a manner
consistent with the related reinsurance contract, Reinsurance assets represent balances due from reinsurance companies.
Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the provision for outstanding claims

or settled claims associated with the reinsurance policies and are in accordance with the related reinsurance contract.

Reinsurance assets are not offset against related insurance liabilities. Income or expenses from reinsurance contract
are not offset against expenses or income from related insurance assets.

Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognized when the contractual rights or obligations are extinguished or expired.
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The Company assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment on reporting date. If there is an objective evidence that
the reinsurance asset is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount of the reinsurance asset to its recoverable
amount and recognizes the impairment loss in the profit and loss account.

The portion of reinsurance premium not recognized as an expense is shown as a prepayment.

Commission income from reinsurers is recognized at the time of issuance of the underlying insurance policy by the
Company. This income is deferred and brought to account as revenue in accordance with the pattern of recognition
of the reinsurance premium to which it relates. Profit commission, if any, which the Company may be entitled to
under the terms of reinsurance, is recognized on accrual basis.

2.2.3 Provision for outstanding claims including IBNR

The Company recognizes liability in respect of all claims incurred up to the reporting date which is measured at the
undiscounted value of the expected future payments. The claims are considered to be incurred at the time of the
incident giving rise to the claim except as otherwise expressly indicated in the insurance contract. The liability for
claims include amounts relating to unpaid reported claims, claims incurred but not reported (IBNR), expected claims
settlement costs, a reduction for the value of salvage and other recoveries, and any adjustments to claims outstanding
from previous years.

Provisions for IBNR arc based on the best estimate which takes into account the past trend, expected [uture patterns
of reporting claims and the claims actually incurred subsequent to the balance sheet date.

The Company accounts for IBNR based on an analysis of past claims reporting pattern by tracking movement in
claims incurred in an accounting period.

2.2.4 Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims

Claims recoveries receivable from the reinsurer are recognized as an asset at the same time as the claims which give
rise to the right of recovery are recognized as a liability and are measured at the amount expected to be received.

2.2.5 Commission expense and other acquisition costs

Commission expense incurred in obtaining and recording policies is deferred and recognized as an expense in
accordance with pattern of recognition of premium revenue.

Other acquisition costs are charged to profit and loss account at the time the policies are accepted.
2.2.6 Premium deficiency reserve

The Company maintains a provision in respect of premium deficiency for the class of business where the unearned
premium liability is not adequate to meet the expected future liability, after reinsurance, from claims and other
supplementary expenses expected to be incurred after the balance sheet date in respect of the unexpired policies in
that class of business at the reporting date.

The movement in the premium deficiency reserve is recorded as an expense / income in profit or loss account for
the year.

For this purpose, loss ratios for each class are estimated based on historical claim development. Judgment is used in
assessing the extent to which past trends may not apply in future or the effects of one-off claims. If these ratios are
adverse, premium deficiency is determined. The loss ratios estimated on these basis for the unexpired portion are as

follows:

2015
- Fire and property damage 12%
- Marine, aviation and transport 3%
- Motor T4%
- Accidental and health 69%
- Miscellaneous 35%
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Based on an analysis of combined operating ratio for the expired period of cach reportable segment, the management
considers that the unearned premium reserve for all classes of business as at the year end is adequale to meet the
expected future liability after reinsurance, from claims and other expenses expected to be incurred after the balance
sheet date in respect of policies in those classes of business in force at the reporting date. Hence, no reserve for the
same has been created in these financial statements.

2.3 Staff retirement benefits

The Company operates an contributory provident fund scheme for all its eligible employees. Equal monthly contributions
to the fund are made by the Company and the employees at the rate of 10% of basic salary.

2.4 Creditors, accruals and provisions

Liabilities for creditors and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to
be paid for the goods and / or services received, whether or not billed to the Company.

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events
and, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate.

2.5 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash and bank deposits and excludes bank balances held under lien.

2.6 Investments

All investments are initially recognized at cost being the fair value of the consideration given and include any transaction
costs. All purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within the time frame established by regulations
or market convention are accounted for at the trade date. Trade date is the date when the Company commits to purchase
or sell the investment,

These investments are classified as ' held-to-maturity' and 'available-for-sale'.
Held-to-maturity

Investments with [ixed maturity, where management has both the intent and ability to hold to maturity, are classified
as 'held-to-maturity'.

Subsequently, these are measured at amortized cost less provision for impairment, if any. Any premium paid or discount
availed on acquisition of held-to-maturity' investments is deferred and amortized over the term of investment using
the effective yield.

These are reviewed for impairment at year end and any losses arising from impairment are charged to the profit and
loss account.

Available-for-sale

Investments which are intended to be held for an undefined period of time but may be sold in response to the need
for liquidity, changes in interest rates, equity prices or exchange rates are classified as availablefor- sale.

Subsequent to initial recognition at cost, these are stated at the lower of cost or market value (market value being
taken as lower if the reduction is other than temporary) in accordance with the requirements of the SEC (Insurance)
Rules, 2002, The Company uses stock exchange quotations at the reporting date to determine the market value of its
quoted investments. The Company uses appropriate valuation techniques to estimate the fair value of unquoted
investments in unlisted securities. If such estimated fair value is lesser than the cost, the Company recognizes the

impairment adjustments.
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In case of fixed income securities redeemable at a given date where the cost is ditferent from the redemption value,
such difference is amortized uniformly over the period between the acquisition date and the date of maturity in
determining 'cost' at which these investments are stated as per the requirements of the SEC (Insurance) Rules, 2002,

2.7 Taxation
2.7.1 Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income for the period determined in accordance with the prevailing
law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected
to apply to the profit for the period, if enacted.

2.7.2 Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising
from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse based on
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited
in the profit and loss account, except in the case of items credited or charged to statement of comprehensive income
in which case it is included in statement of comprehensive income.

2.8 Fixed assets
2.8.1 Tangible

Owned fixed assets are stated at cost, signifying historical cost, less accumulated depreciation and any provision for
accumulated impairment. Cost of an item of [ixed assets consists of historical cost, borrowing cost pertaining to
erection / construction period of qualifying asset directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to working condition.
Depreciation is charged to income applying the reducing balance method at the rates specified for calculation of
depreciation in note 15. The useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
reporting date.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to profit and loss account as and when
incurred.

Depreciation on additions is charged from the month the assets are available for use while on disposals, depreciation
is charged up to the month in which the assets are disposed olT.

The carrying values of tangible fixed assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that this carrying value may not be recoverable. It any such indications exist and where the carrying values
exceed the estimated recoverable amounts, the assets are written down to their recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount of the assets disposed
of. These are taken to profit and loss account,

2.8.2 Intangible
These are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and any provision for accumulated impairment, if any.
Amortization is calculated from the month the assets are available for use using the straight-line method, whereby

the cost of the intangible asset is amortized over its estimated useful life over which economic benefits are expected
to flow to the Company. The useful life and amortization methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each

reporting date.
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Software development costs are only capitalized to the extent that future economic benefits are expected to be derived
by the Company.

The carrying values of intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate
that this carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indications exist and where the carrving values exceed
the estimated recoverable amounts, the assets are written down to their recoverable amount.

2.9 Expenses of management
Expenses of management have been allocated to various revenue accounts on equitable basis.

Previously, expenses of management allocated to underwriting business represented directly attributable expenses.
Indirect expenses were charged as General and administration expenses. This change has no financial etfect on the
current, previous and future years' profitablity and earning per share since this change relates to presentation and
disclosure aspects only. Reclassification of change due to this change is disclosued in Note 32.

2.10 Investment income

From available-for-sale investments
- Return on fixed income securities
Return on fixed income securities is recognized on a time proportion basis.
- Dividend
Dividend income is recognized when the Company's right to receive the dividend is established.
- Gain/ loss on sale of available-for-sale investments

Gain / loss on sale of available-for-sale investments is recognized in profit and loss account in the year of sale.
2.11 Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for in Pak Rupees at the rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the reporting date. Exchange differences are taken to the profit and loss account currently.

2.12 Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument and de-recognized when the Company loses control of contractual rights that comprise
the financial assets and in the case of financial Liabilities when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on the de-recognition of the financial asscts and liabilities is included in the
profit and loss account.

Financial instruments carried on the balance sheet include cash and bank, investments, premium due but unpaid,
amounts due from other insurers / reinsurers, accrued investment income, sundry receivables, amounts due to other
insurers / reinsurers and other creditors and accruals. The particular recognition methods adopted are disclosed in
the individual policy statements associated with each item.

2.13 Dividend and other appropriations
Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the Company's financial statements

in the period in which the dividends are approved by the sharcholders and other appropriations are recognized in the
period in which these are approved by the Board ol Directors.
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2.14 Off setting of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when the
Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and it intends either to settle on a net basis
or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.15 Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its shareholders. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is calculated il there is any potential dilutive
effect on the Company's reported net profits.

2.16 Impairment
Financial assets

A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicate that one or more events had a negative
effect on the estimated future cash flow of that asset.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as a difference between
its carrying amount and the present value of estimated [uture cash llows discounted at the original effective interest
rate. An impairment loss in respect of available-for-sale financial asset is calculated with reference to its current fair
value.

Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial
assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.

Non financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of such asset is
estimated. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognized in profit and loss account. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the assel's recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable
amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation,
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in profit and loss
account.

2,17 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker (the board of directors) who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments.

The Company accounts for segment reporting using the classes of business as specified under the Insurance Ordinance,
2000 and the SEC (Insurance) Rules, 2002 as the primary reporting format based on the Company's practice of
reporting to the management on the same basis.

Assets, liabilities and capital expenditures that are directly attributable to segments have been assigned to them while
the carrying amount of certain assets used jointly by two or more segments have been allocated to segments on a
reasonable basis. Those assets and liabilities which cannot be allocated to a particular segment on a reasonable basis
are reported as unallocated corporate assets and liabilities,

2.18 Share capital

Shares are classified as equity when there is no obligation to transfer cash or other assets. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of equity instruments are shown in equily as a deduction from the proceeds.
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Note 2015 2014
Rupees Rupees
3. SHARE CAPITAL
3.1 Authorized share capital
Number
2015 2014
50,000,000 50,000,000  Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each 500,000,000 500,000,000
3.2 Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital
2015 2014
Ordinary shares ol Rupees 10 each
50,000,000 50,000,000 fully paid in cash 500,000,000 500,000,000
3.3 As at 31 December 20 5, all the shares are beneficially held by Government of Sindh directly and through nominee directors.
4 DEFERRED TAXATION
Deferred tax liablity / (assct) arising in respect of:
- accelerated depriciation 1,925,727 1,785,723
- provision for WWF - (322,691)
1,925,727 1,463,032
5 AMOUNTS DUE TO OTHER INSURERS / REINSURERS
Considered good
- foreign 8,776,927 1,923,709
- local 6,768,571 1,035,843
15,545,498 2959552
6 OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS
Commission to agents 139,452 415.282
Sindh sales tax on services 936,023 265,382
Federal insurance fee 75,749 17,669
Withholding tax 208,341 95,152
Provident fund contributions - 482 988
Sundry creditors 2,244,181 1,022.318
Auditor's remuneration 415,500 100,000
Provision for compensated leave absenses 1,431,567 -
Provision for Workers Welfare Fund - 977.850
5,450,813 3.376.641

7 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

There were no contigencies or commitments as at the balance sheet date (2014: Nil).
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Note 2015 2014
R 5 R
8  CASHAND BANK DEPOSITS apees RS
Cash and other equivalents
Cash in hand 31,463 36,586
Policy stamps 24,174 12,786
55,637 49,372
Current and other accounts
Current accounts - -
Saving accounts 8.1 23,281,005 35,288,507
23,281,005 35.288.507
Deposits maturing within 12 months
Fixed and term deposits 8.2 30,000,000 100,000,000
53,336,642 135,337,879

8.1 The rate of return on these accounts ranges from 5% to 9.5% per annum.
g P

8.2 These represent Term Deposit Receipts (TDRs) in local currency carrying interest rates of 5.95% to 6.10% per annum.

9 INVESTMENTS

Held-to-maturity
Government securities 9.1 100,403,206 50,717,456

Available-for-sale
Government securities 9.2 224,780,893 304,509,547
Mutual funds 93 201,125,810 -
425,906,703 304,509,547
526,309,909 355.227.003

9.1 Held-to-maturity
Market treasury bills 9.1.1 49,324,250 -

Pakistan Investment Bonds

Pakistan Investment Bonds - cost 50,481,320 50,481,320
Add: Cummulative amortization of discount at year end 597,636 236,136
51,078,956 30.,717.456
100,403,206 50,717.456

9.1.1 This represent a market treasury bills with a face value of Rupees 50,000,000 carrying effective yield rate of 6.244%. This will
mature on 17 March 2016.

9.2 Available-for-sale
Pakistan Investment Bonds

Pakistan Investment Bonds - cost 225,240,510 304,797,902
Less: Cummulative amortization of premium at the year end (459,617) (288,353)
224,780,893 304,509,547




N
SINDH [NSURANCE

Power To T ProsLk

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

9.3 Mutual Funds

At cost No. of Units
2015 2014

NAFA Income Opportunity Fund 2,323.966.86 - 26,893,849 -
NAFA Government Security Fund 2,353,827.32 - 25,000,000 -
ABL - Government Security Fund -B 2,509,927.42 - 26,963,048 -
ABL Income Fund 2,410,033.45 - 25,000,000 -
MCB - Pakistan Sovereign Fund 461,002.84 - 25,000,000 -
MCB - Pakistan Income Enhancement Fund 450,694.07 - 25,000,000 -
Meezan [slamic Income Fund 475,014.25 = 25,000,000 -
Meerzan Sovereign Fund 461,716.04 - 24,000,000 -

202,856,897 -
Less: Impairment loss carrying value at vear end (1,731.087) -

201,125,810 -

9.4 On 31 December 2015, the fair value of available-for-sale securitics was Rupees 428,184,920, As per the Company's accounting
policy, available-Tor-sale investments are stated at lower of cost or market value (market value being taken as lower if the
reduction is other than temporary). However, International Accounting Standard (1AS) 39, 'Financial [nstruments: Recognition
and Measurements' dealing with the recognition and measurement of financial instruments requires that these instruments
should be measured at fair value. Accordingly, had these investments been measured at fair value, their carrying value as at
31 December 2015 would have been higher by Rupees 2,278.217.

Note 2015 2014
Rupees Rupees
10 PREMIUM DUE BUT UNFPAID
Considered good 27,508,448 2,102,755
Considered doubtful - -
27,508,448 2,102,755
Provision for doubtful balances - -
27,508,448 2,102,755
11 AMOUNTS DUE FROM OTHER INSURERS / REINSURERS
Considered good
- foreign 2,217,335 -
- local 1,170,711 447 485
3.388.046 447 485
12 ACCRUED INVESTMENT INCOME
Term deposit receipts 89,322 356,165
Government sccuritics 13,423,154 18,177,836
13,512,476 18,534,001
13 PREPAYMENTS
Prepaid reinsurance ceded 12,235,810 2,758,591
Prepaid insurance expense 126,047 348.888
Prepaid rent 1,176,719 1,461,660
Others 270,891 100,025
13,809,468 4,669,164
14 SUNDRY RECEIVABLES
Considered good
Advance for purchase of vehicle - 1,627,500
Advance for health claims 14.1 1,210,420 -
[nsurance claim recievable 14.2 1,475,000 -
Other receivables 693,026 23,009
3,378,446 1,650,509

14.1  This represent the advance given to Third Party Administrator, M/s Health E-Connex (Private) Limited against health claims.

14.2  This represent the insurance claim receivable from National Insurance Company Limited against loss of vehicle.
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15 Fixed Assets - Owned

Tangibles Intangible
Particulars Leasehold Furniture Olfice Computers  Vehicles Total Tntangibles Total Total
Improvements  and fixture  Equipment tangible intangible
ussels assels
------------------------------------------ Rupees —------mmmm oo

Year ended 31 December 2015
Opening hook value 11,674,336 1.902.549 5,997,718 649,713 5.105.217 25,329,533 47,825 47,825 25,377,358
Additions 73,000 358,820 311,265 446,800 2825013 4,214,898 3284114 3284114 7499,012
Disposal / write otfs

Cost - - - - (1.627.3000 (1,627,500) - - {1,627.500)

Accomulated depreciation £ amortization - - - - 320,327 320,527 - - 320527

- - - - (1,306,973 (1,306,973) - - (1,306973)

Depreciation / amortization charge for the period (383,717) (223,044) {613,135 (283,744)  (L195043)  (2,900,68%)  (592,906)  (392,906) (3.493,595)

Closing net hook value 11,163,619 2.236,325 5,095,844 812,769 5.428.212 25,336,769 2,739,033 2,739,033 28,075,802

As at 31 December 2015
Cost 12,161,075 2,584,091 6,351,926 1,154,652 6,608,513 29,060,257 3351446 3,351,446 32,411,703
Accumulated depreciation { amortization (997.456) (247.766) {856.082) (341.883) (1,180,301 (3,723,488) (612413 (612,413) 4,335,901)

11,163,619 2,236,325 5,695,844 812,769 5428212 25336,769 2,739,033 2,739,033 28.075.802

As al 31 December 2014

Cost 12,088,075 202527 6.2401,661 07,852 S411.000 26,472,859 67,332 67,332 26,540,191
Accumulated depreciation / amortization (413,73% (122.722) {242.943) (38,139 (305,783) (1,143,326) {19.507) (19,507) (1.162.833)

11,674,336 1.902,549 5997718 649,713 5105217 25,329,533 47825 47825 25,377,358
Depreciation / amortization rate (%) 3 10 10 3333 20 3333
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For the period
For the year from 20
ended 31 December 2013
December to 31 December
Note 2015 2014
Rupees Rupees
16 NET PREMIUM REVENUE
Premium revenue (net of reinsurance) 20,391,577 (459,697)
Administrative surcharge 16.1 116,591 1.198
20,508,168 (458.499)

16.1 Administrative surcharge

Premium written and net premium revenue include administrative surcharge, class wise detail of which is given below:

Fire and property damage 34,929 400
Marine, aviation and transport 8,107 449
Motor 61,164 349
Accident & health - -
Miscellaneous 12,391 -

116,591 1.198

17 MANAGEMENT EXPENSES

Salaries, allowance and benefits 17.1 15,707,979 2,781,589
Rent, rates and taxes 1,220,408 1,046,124
Legal and professional charges 206,302 357.020
Travelling and conveyance 1,494,596 447,720
Printing and stationary expenses 309,866 114,165
Repair and maintenance 243,611 46,183
Depreciation 1,160,276 457,030
Amortization of intangibles 237,162 7.803
Advertising 17,000 109,691
Utilities 378,837 103,140
Communication 181,340 66.514
Office expenses 493,658 165.797
Other charges 128,131 22,676
Insurance expenses 254,313 67.693
Meeting fee 20,000 -
Survey fee 151,750 -
Security charges 13,996 17.590
Brokerage and Commission 734,198 -
Service charges 632,387 6,486
Miscellaneous expenses 307,437 2,393

23,893,247 5.819.614

17.1  This includes Company's contribution to the staff provident fund of Rupees 334,318.
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18. COMMISSION FROM REINSURERS
Commission  Unearned commission 25 2014
Class received or Commission Commission
SR Opening Closing reig;ﬁJTers rei:‘s(ill?ers
------------------------------- Rupees:«:=2=sspesmrsnsnsahsrnsmmse s sotises
Fire and properly damage 2,926,227 394,241 1,339,838 1,339,830 33,579
Marine, aviation and transport 11,335 15,568 6,187 20,716 4,097
Motor 219,437 - 135,337 84,100 -
Accident & Health - - - - -
Miscellaneous 665,113 - 422,252 242.861 -
3,822,112 409,809 2,544,414 1,687,507 37.676
For the period
For the year from 20
ended 31 December 2013
December to 31 December
2015 2014
19 OTHER INCOME Rupees Ruhos
Service income 203,618 -
Return on saving accounts 12,564,671 -
Gain on disposal ol lixed assel 168,027 -
Tncome on generator sharing 436,360 218,430
Reversal of provision 977,850 -
Other 37,684 2,500
14,388,710 220,930
20 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries, wages, allowance and benefits 20.1 8.850,122 2,649,966
Directors meeting lee 110,000 120,000
Renl, rates and taxes 1,031,412 769,986
Legal and prolessional charges 309,453 535,531
Auditors’ remuncration 20.2 527,250 100,000
Depreciation 1,740,413 685,996
Amortization of intangibles 355,744 11,704
Printing and stationery 319,113 153,824
Repair and maintenance 313,298 64,978
Travelling, conveyance and entertainment 858,499 476,302
Adverlising 25,499 164,537
Ultilities 568,256 154,709
Communication 272,009 99,771
Office expenses 740,487 248,695
Other charges 192,196 34,015
Tnsurance expenses 381,470 101,540
Provision for Workers Welfare Fund - 977.850
16,595,221 7.349.404
20.1  This includes Company's contribution to the stall provident fund of Rupees 468,670.
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Auditor’s remuneration

Audit fee

Tax and other certifications

TAXATION

Current
Deferred

Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

The relationship between tax cxpensc and accounting profit is as follows:

Accounting prolit before tax

Tax @ 32%

Elffect of taxable temporary differences on account of:
- tax depreciation allowance

- dividend income

- gain on disposal ol fixed assel

- provision for Workers Welfare Fund

Deffered tax effect due to temporary difference of:

- tax depreciation allowance
- provision for Workers Welfare Fund

EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share which is based on:

Net profit after tax for the period - Rupees
Weighted average number of ordinary sharcs - Number

Basic earnings per share - Rupees

For the year
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For the period
from 20

ended 31 December 2013
December 1o 31 December
2015 2014
Rupees Rupees
115,000 100,000
412,250 =z
527,250 100,000
21.1 29,381,019 14,310,516
21.2 462,695 1,463,032
29,843,714 15,773,548
97,162,681 47.798.630
31,092,059 15,773,548
(91,550) (1,785,723)
(1,252,809) -
(53,769)
(312,912) 322,691
29,381,019 14,310,516
462,695 1,785,723
- (322.691)
462,695 1,463,032
67,318,967 32,025,082
50,000,000 50,000,000
1.35 0.64
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23 REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND EXECUTIVES
For year ended 31 December 2015

24

Chief Executive Directors Executives Total
Officer
——————————————————————————————————— RUPEES - -2 smmmommemrsssmmrmnr s s e

Basic pay 2,799,997 - 3,527,268 6,327,265
House rent allowance 1,260,009 B 1,587,264 2,847,273
Utilities 279,997 - 352,740 632,737
Medical allowance 279.997 - 352,728 632,725
Others perquisites 676,935 - 674,157 1,351,092
Meeling lee - 110,000 - 110,000

5,296,935 110,000 6,494,157 11,901,092
Number ol Persons 1 3 3
For the period from 20 December 2013 to 31 December 2014

Chief Executive Directors Executives Total
Officer
——————————————————————————————————— Rupees --------ooomi

Basic pay 1,887,877 - 762,169 2,650,046
House rent allowance 849,550 - 342,976 1,192,526
Utilitics 188,787 - 76.218 265,005
Medical allowance 188,787 = 76,216 265,003
Others perquisites 566,945 - 174,052 740,997
Meeling lee - 120,000 - 120,000

3,681,946 120,000 1.431.631 5,233,577
Number ol Persons | 2 3

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties comprise ol associated companies, entities under common control, entities with common Directors, major
shareholders and key management personnel of the Company. Transactions with related parties are carried out at arm’s length
prices determined under “Comparable uncontrolled price method”. Transactions and balances with related parties have been
disclosed in relavant notes to the financial statements. Other transactions and balances not elsewhere disclosed are summarized

as follows:

Associated Companies
Sindh Bank Limited (SBL)
Bank balances
Premium due but unpaid
Claim payable

Investment in Term Deposit Receipts

Payable to Sindh Bank Limited

Purchase ol Pakistan Investment Bond

(PIB) from SBL

Sale of Paksitan Investment Bond (PIB) to SBL

Income on saving account
Premium writlen

Premium received

Claim paid

Term Deposit Receipts encashed
Tncome on Term Deposit Receipls

Balance as on Transations for

Balance as on

Transactions for

31 December the year ended 31 December  the year ended
2015 31 December 2014 31 December
2015 2014
23,281,005 35,288,507
19,487,583
6.972,173
204,300,000 100,000,000
(13.497)
229,478,263 652,000,000
811,570,402 274,000,000
13,189.911 6,325,049
55,123,086
35,635,503
7,011,794
125,000,000
964,383 36.958.904
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Balance as on Transations for Balance as on  Transactions for
31 December the year ended 31 December  the year ended
2015 31 December 2014 31 December
2015 2014
Associated Companies
Sindh Modarba Management Limited (SML)

Premium due but unpaid 24773

Claim payable 20,000

Premium wrillen 374,054

Premium received 349,281

Claim paid 31,468

Payable to Sindh Modarba Company Limited (10.384)

Payment made to Sindh Modarba Management Limited
against expenses paid on behalf of the Company 24,289

Income on sharing of generator 436,860 218,430

Sindh Leasing Company Limited (SLCL)

Premium wrillen 189,437

Premium received 189,437

Claim paid 67,838

Payable to Sindh Leasing Company Limited (69.072)

Payment made o Sindh Leasing Management Limited 1,689,574

against expenses paid on behall of the Company

Others
Health Econnex (Private) Limited
Advance for health claim expenses 1,210,420
Health claims paid on behall of company 6,225,590

25 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2015 2014

Number of employees at the end ol the year 32 15

Average number ol employees during the period 24 6
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26 FINANCIAL AND INSURANCE RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company's activitics expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including interest /
mark-up rate risk. price risk and currency risk). The Company's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
ol financial markets and seeks Lo minimize polential adverse effects on the [inancial performance. Overall risks arising [rom the
Company's [inancial assels and liabilities are limited. The Company consistently manages its exposure Lo [inancial risk without
any malerial change from previous period in the manner described in notes below. The Board of Directors has overall responsibility
for the establishment and oversight of Company's risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing the
Company's risk management policies.

The individual risk wise analysis is given below:
26.1  Credit risk and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its obligation
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures
by undertaking transactions with a large number of counterparties in various sectors and by continually assessing the credit
worthiness ol counterparties.

Concentration of credit risk occurs when a number of counterpartics have a similar type of business activitics. As a result any
change in cconomic, political or other conditions would affeet their ability to meet contractual obligations in similar manner. The
Company's credit risk exposure is not significantly different from that reflected in these financial statements. The management
monitors and limits the Company's exposure and makes conservative estimates of provisions [or doubtful assets, il any. The
management is of the view that it is not exposed Lo significant concentration ol credit risk as its [Tnancial assets are adequately
diversified in entities ol sound financial standing, covering various industrial sectors.

The carrying amount of financial asscts represents the maximum credit exposure, as specified below:

2015 2014
Rupees Rupees
Bank balances 53,281,005 135,337,679
Investments 526,309,909 355,227,003
Premiums due but unpaid 27,508,448 2,102,755
Re-insurance recoveries against outstanding claims 1,415,042 -
Loan to employees 119,833 -
Amounts due from other insurers / reinsurers 3.388,046 447,485
Accrued investment income 13,512,476 18,534,001
Sundry receivables 3,378,446 1,650,509

628,913,205 513,299,432

Provision for impairment is made for doubtful receivables according to the Company's policy. The impairment provision is written
off when the Company expects that it cannot recover the balance due. During the period, receivables of Rupees Nil were [urther
impaired and provided flor.

The age analysis of premium due but unpaid [rom other than related parties is as follows:

Upto 3 months 6,218,767 2,102,755
3 to 6 months 1,045,019 =
6 to 12 months 732,306 -
More than 12 months - -
7,996,092 2,102,755

The age analysis of premium due but unpaid from related parties is as follows:
Upto 3 months 24,773 -
3 to 6 months 19,487,583 =
6 to 12 months - -
More than 12 months - -
19,512,356 -
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The credit quality of Company's bank balances can be assessed with reference to external credit ratings as follows:

Rating Rating 2015 2014
Short term Long term Agency Rupees Rupees

Saving accounts

Sindh Bank Limited A-1+ AA JCR-VIS 23,281,005 35,288,507
Term deposit certificates

JS Bank Limited Al+ A+ PACRA 15,000,000 -
Sindh Bank Limited A-1+ AA JCR-VIS - 100,000,000
Pak Oman Microfinance Bank Limited Unrated Unrated 15,000,000 -

533,281,005 135,288,507

The credit quality of amount duc from other insurers can be assessed with reference to external credit rating as follows:

Amount due from other
insurers / reinsurers

2015 2014
Rupees Rupees
A or above 1,171,446 447 485
BEB - -
Unrated 2,216,600 -
Total 3,388,046 447 485

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Prudent liquidity
risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of adequate funds through
committed credit facilities. The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and working capital with a view to
maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk. The management follows an cffective cash
management program to mitigate the liquidity risk.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial Habilities, including estimated interest payments on an undiscounted
cash lMow basis:

As at 31 December 2015

Carrying Contractual Upto one year More than one
amount cash flow year
Financial liabilities Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Premium received in advance 77,066 T77.066 77.066 -
Provision for outstanding claims 7.480,182 7.4860.182 7,486,182 -
Amount due to insurers / reinsurers 15,545,498 15.545.498 15,545,498 -
Other creditors and accruals 5450813 5450813 5,450,813 -
28,559,559 28,559,559 28,559,559 -

)
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As at 31 December 2014

Carrying Contractual Upto one year More than one

amount cash flow year
Financial liabilitiess @~ =0 Gemesossseessemessmeisseneeans Riupees === msmsmmansnrssmsa s i s
Provision for outstanding claims 115,991 115,991 115.991 -
Amount duc to insurers / reinsurers 2,959,552 2959557 2,959,552 -
Other creditors and accruals 1,537,600 1,537,600 1,537,600 -

4,613,143 4,613,143 4,613,143 -

26.3 Market risk

Market risk means that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. The objective is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.
The market risks associated with the Company's business activities are interest / mark-up rate risk, price risk and currency risk.

a) Interest / mark-up rate risk

Interest / mark-up rate risk is the risk that value of a financial instrument or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fTuctuate due to changes in the market interest / mark-up rates. Sensitivity to interest / mark-up rate risk arises [rom mismatching
ol [inancial assets and liabilities that mature or repaid in a given period. The Company manages this mismatchment through risk
management strategies where significant changes in gap position can be adjusted. At the reporting date the interest / mark-up
rate profile of the Company's significant interest / mark-up bearing financial instruments was as follows:

As at 31 December 2015 As at 31 December 2014
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate

(% age) Rupees (%eage) Rupees
Fixed rate financial instruments
Financial assets
Investments-PIBs 11.5% to 13% 275,859,849 11.25% to 11.50% 355,227.003
Investments-T-Bills 6.24% 49,324,250 - -
Bank deposits 6% to 9% 23,336,642 9.50% 35,288,507
Term deposit receipls 5.95% to 6.10% 30,000,000 10.00% 100,000,000
Floating rate financial instruments
Financial assets - -
Financial liabilities - -

Sensitivity analysis

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a
change in interest rate will not affect fair value of any financial instrument. Since there are no floating rate financial instruments,
therefore, sensitivity analysis cannot be produced.

b) Price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the market prices
(other than those arising from interest / mark-up rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factor specific
to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors atfecting all or similar financial instrument traded in the market.
The Company is not exposed to price risk as the Company has no equity investments.

©



e
SINDH [NSUR ANCE

Powee To The Peorie

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

c) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Company is not exposed to foreign currency risk as the Company has no financial assets and financial
liabilities in foreign currencies.

26.4 Insurance risk

The principal risk the Company laces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benelit payments or the timing
thereof, differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual benefits paid and
subsequent development of long-term claims. Therefore, the objective of the Company is to ensure that sufficient reserves are
available to cover these liabilities. The above risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance
contracts and geographical areas. The variability of risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting
strategy guidelines, as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements. Further, strict claim review policies to assess all new and
ongoing claims, regular detailed review of claims handling procedures and frequent investigation of possible fraudulent claims
and similar procedures are put in place to reduce the risk exposure of the Company. The Company lurther enforces a policy ol
actively managing and prompt pursuing of claims, in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future developments that can
negatively impact the Company.

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision and are in
accordance with the reinsurance contracts.

Although the Company has reinsurance arrangements, it is not relieved of its direct obligations to its policyholders and thus a
credil exposure exists with respect to ceded insurance, to the extent that any reinsurer is unable to meet its obligations assumed
under such reinsurance agreements. The Company’s placement of reinsurance is diversified such that it is neither dependent on
a single reinsurer nor are the operations of the Company substantially dependent upon any single reinsurance contract. Reinsurance
policies are written with approved reinsurers on either a proportionate basis or non-proportionate basis. The reinsurers are
carefully selected and approved and are dispersed over several geographical regions.

Expericnce shows that larger the portfolio is in similar insurance contracts, smaller will be the relative variability about the
expected outcome. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the board by a change in any subset
ol the portfolio. The Company has developed its insurance underwriting strategy to diversily the type ol insurance risks accepted
and within each of these categories to achieve a sufTiciently large population of risks to reduce the variability of the expected
outcome.

The Company principally issues the general insurance contracts e.g. marine and aviation, property, motor and general accidents.
Risks under non-life insurance policies usually cover twelve month or lesser duration. For general insurance contracts the most
significant risks arise from accidental fire, atmospheric disaster and terrorist activities. Insurance contracts at times also cover
risk for single incidents that expose the Company to multiple insurance risks.

a) Geographical concentration of insurance risk

To optimize benefits from the principle of average and law of large numbers. geographical spread of risk is of extreme importance.
There are a number of parameters which are significant in assessing the accumulation of risks with reference to the geographical
location, the most important of which is risk survey.

Risk surveys are carried out on a regular basis for the evaluation of physical hazards associated primarily with the commercial
{ industrial occupation of the insured. Details regarding the [ire separation / segregation with respect to the manulacturing
processes, storage, ulilities, etc. are extracted from the layout plan of the insured facility. Such details are formed part of the
reports which are made available to the underwriters / reinsurers for their evaluation. Reference is made to the standard construction
specifications laid down by Insurance Association of Pakistan (IAP). For fire and property risk a particular building and and
neighboring buildings, which could be atfected by a single claim incident, are considered as a single location. For earthquake
risk, a complete city is classificd as a single location. Similarly, for marine risk, multiple risks covered in a single vessel voyage
arc considered as a single risk while assessing concentration of risk. The Company evaluates the concentration of exposures to
individual and cumulative insurance risks and establishes its reinsurance policy to reduce such exposures to levels acceptable
Lo the Company.
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A risk management solution is implemented to help assess and plan for risk in catastrophic scenarios. It provides a way to better
visualize the risk exposure of the Company and to determines the appropriate amount ol Reinsurance coverage Lo protect the
business portfolio.

b) Reinsurance arrangements

Keeping in view the maximum exposure in respect of key zone aggregates, a number of proportional and nonproportional
reinsurance arrangements are in place to protect the net account in case of a major catastrophe. Apart from the adequate event
limit which is a multiple of the treaty capacity or the primary recovery from the proportional treaty, any loss over and above
the said limit would be recovered Itom the non-proportional treaty which is very much in line with the risk management philosophy
ol the Company.

In compliance with regulatory requirements, the reinsurance agreements are duly submitted to the Securitics and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan on an annual basis.

The Company’s class wise risk exposure (based on maximum loss coverage in a single policy is as follows):

Class Gross sum Reinsurance Net exposure Net exposure

insured of risk of risk
2015 2014

Rupees Rupees Rupees

Fire and property damage 350,265,000 338,265,000 12,000,000 10,000,000

Marine, aviation and transport 31,003,652 21,003,652 10,000,000 -

Motor 9,000,000 8,250,000 750,000 6,000,000

Accident and Health 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 -

Miscellaneous 350,000,000 332,500,000 17,500,000 -

741,268,652 700,018,652 41,250,000 16,000,000
c) Uncertainty in the estimation of future claims payment

Claims on general insurance contracts are payable on a claim occurrence basis. The Company is liable for all insured events
that occur during the term of the insurance contract including the event reported aflter the expiry of the insurance contract term.

An estimated amount of the claim is recorded immediately on the intimation to the Company. The estimation of the amount is
based on management judgment or preliminary assessment by the independent surveyor appointed for this purpose. The initial
estimates include expected settlement cost of the claims.

There are several variable factors which alfect the amount and timing of recognized claim liabilities. The Company takes all
reasonable measures to mitigate the factors affecting the amount and timing of claim settlements. However, uncertainty prevails
with estimated claim liabilities and it is likely that final settlement of these liabilities may be different from initial recognized
amount. Since this is the first year of operations, the provision for IBNR is based on management best estimate; henee, actual
amount of IBNR may differ from the amount estimated.

d) Key assumptions

The principal assumption underlying the liability estimation of TBNR is that the Company's future claim development will follow
similar market pattern for occurrence and reporting. The management uses qualilative judgment Lo assess the extent to which
reporting pattern will not apply in [uture. The judgment includes external lactors e.g. treatment of one-ofT occurrence claims,
changes in market factors, cconomic conditions, etc. The internal factors such as portfolio mix, policy conditions and claim
handling procedures are further used in this regard.

e) Sensitivity analysis
As the Company enters into short term insurance contracts, it does not assume any signilicant impact ol changes in market

conditions on unexpired risks. However, some resulls of sensitivity testing are set oul below, showing an impact on profit / (loss)
before tax net of reinsurance:

o
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Pre-tax loss Shareholders’ equity
2015 2014 2015 2014
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
10% increase in loss
Fire and property damage 7,503 8,898 5,103 5,962
Marine, aviation and transport 472 1,347 321 902
Motor 346,047 1,354 235,312 907
Accident and Health 904,257 - 614,895 =
Miscellancous 67,202 - 45,697 -
1,325,483 11,599 901,328 7,771
10% decrease in loss
Fire and property damage (7,505) (8.898) (5,103) (3.962)
Marine, aviation and transport (472) (1.347) (321) (902)
Motor (346,047) (1.354) (235.312) (907)
Accident and Health (904,257) = (614,895) 3
Miscellancous (67,202) 5 (45,697) -
(1,325,483) (11,599) (901,328) (7.771)

) Claim develoment
Since this is the second accounting period of the Company's operations, the claims development table cannot be produced.
27 FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in these financial stalements approximate to their fair values
except for available-for-sale investments which are stated at lower ol cost and market value in accordance with the requirements
of the SEC (Insurance) Rules, 2002, The carrying and fair value of these investments have been disclosed in note 7 to the financial
statements. Since the financial assets are not stated at exact fair values, therefore, analysis under following groups from level 1
to level 3 based on the degree to which fair value is observable is not produced:

Level 1: Quoted Market prices
Level 2: Valuation techniques (market observable)
Level 3: Valuation techniques (non market observable)

The carrying values of all financial assels and liabilities reflected in [inancial statements approximate their fuir values. Fair value
is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date.

28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT BY CATEGORIES
As at 31 December 2015

Loans and Held-to- Available-for-
receivables maturity sale Total
—————————————————————————————————— Rupees --------c-mccmmmmmmm e

Financial assets
Cash and bank balances 53,336,642 5 E: 53,336,642
Investments - 100,403,206 425,906,703 526,309,909
Premiums due but unpaid 27,508,448 - 2 27,508,448
Re-insurance recoveries against outstanding claims 1,415,042 - - 1,415,042
Loan to employees 119,833 - - 119,833
Amounts due from other insurers / reinsures 3,388,046 - - 3,388,046
Accrued investment income 13,512,476 - - 13,512,476
Sundry receivables 3,378,446 - - 3,378,446

102,658,933 100,403,206 425,906,703 628,968,842

)
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As at 31 December 2015

Financial Liabilities

Provision for outstanding claims (including IBNR)

Loan to cmployees
Amount due to other insurers / reinsures
Other creditors and accruals

As at 31 December 2014

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances

Investments

Premiums due but unpaid

Amounts due from other insurers / reinsures
Accrued investment income

Sundry receivables

As at 31 December 2014

Financial liabilities

Provision for outstanding claims (including IBNR)

Amount due to other insurers / reinsures

Other creditors and accruals
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At amortized
cost

Rupees

7.486,182
77.066
15.545.498
5.450.813

28,559,559

Loans and
receivables

Held-to- Available-for-
maturity sale

135,337,879
2,102,755
447,485
18,534,001
1,650,509

50,717,456 304,509,547

135,337,879
355,227,003
2,102,755
447,485
18,534,001
1,650,509

158,072,629

50,717,456 304,509,547

513,299,632

PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURE

At amortized
cost

Rupees

115991
2,959,552
1,537,600

4,613,143

The following information is based on un-audited financial information of the provident fund for the year ended 31 December

2015.

Size of the funds - Total asscts
Cost of investments

Percentage of investments made
Fair value of investments

The break-up cost of investments is as follows:

Term deposit receipts
Investments in mutual funds

Cash at bank - saving account

2015 2014
Rupees Rupees
1,507,598 -
960,000 -
645 -
988,079 -
2015 2015 2014 2014
Percentage Rupees Percentage Rupees
66% 988,079 0% -
349% 519,519 0% -
100% 1,507,598 0% -

9
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The above investment / placement of funds has been made in accordance with the provisions of section 227 of the Companies
Ordinance. 1984 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

30 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company's goals and objectives when managing capital are:

- Lo be an appropriately capitalised institution in compliance with the paid-up capital requirement set by the SECP. Minimum paid
up capital requirement for non-life insurers is Rupees 300 million. The Company's current paid-up capital is well in excess ol
the limit prescribed by the SECP;

- to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for sharcholders and
benefits for the other stakeholders;

- to provide an adequate return to sharcholders by pricing insurance contracts commensurately with the level of risk:
- Lo maintain strong ratings and to protect the Company against unexpected events/ losses; and

- Lo ensure a strong capital base o as to maintain investor, creditor and market conlidence and to sustain future development of
the business.

31 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were approved and authorized for issue on by the Board of Dircctors of the
Company.

32 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

32.1  No signilicant reclassification/re-arrangement of corresponding figures has been made during the year except for followings:

From To Reason Rupees
General and administrative Underwriting expense For belter presentation 4,100,735
EXpEnses
Prepaid reinsurance ceded Prepayments For better presentation 2,758,391
6,859,326

33 GENERAL

- Figures have been rounded to the nearest Rupee.

a&&qv

éﬂief Executive Ofﬁceﬁ‘

Chairman Director

Gl iy
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HELD BY THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SINDH INSURANCE LIMITED
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2015
Numiber of Shareholding p
5 Shares Held ercentage
Shareholders Fioiii To %o
1 1 49,999,993 49,999,993 09.999986
49,999,994 50,000,000 7 0.000014
50,000,000 100.0000
Categories of Shareholders Shareholders Shares Held Percentage
Associated Company s - -
Banks, Development Finance
Institutions, Non-Banking Finance
Companies, Insurance Companies,
Takaful Companies and Modarabas = E >
Mutual Funds = = -
Other Companies = = R
Shareholding Above 5%
Government of Sindh 1 49,999,093 09.999986
Directors, CEQ, Executives and their
Spouses and Minor Childrens
Muhammad Bilal Sheikh 1 1 0.000002
Mohammad Sohail Khan Rajput | 1 0.000002
Syed Shahnwaz Nadir | 1 0.000002
Muhammad Naimuddin Farooqui | 1 0.000002
Shamsuddin Khan 1 1 0.000002
Ahmed Salahuddin 1 1 0.000002
Akhtar Ali Khan 1 1 0.000002
Individuals . - -
Total 8 50,000,000 100.000000
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Quote Folio No.

Second Annual General Meeting

I/'We, of

being a member of Sindh Insurance Limited and holder of ordinary shares,
hereby appoint of

or failing him of

who are also members of Sindh Insurance Limited as my/our proxy in my/our absence to attend and vote for me/us and
on my/our behalf at the Second Annual General Meeting to be held on Thursday, April 28, 2016 at 10:00 am at st Floor,

Imperial Court, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Karachi and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this day of 2016

1. Witness:

Signature

Name

Address

CNIC No. Please affix
Rupees Five
Revenue
Stamp

Passport No.

2 Witness:

Signature

Name

Address

CNIC No.

Passport No. Signature of Member

Importants: This instrument appointing a proxy, duly completed, must be received by the Company
Secretary at the Company’s Head Office/Registered Office, 1st Floor, Imperial Court, Dr. Ziauddin Amed Road, Karachi.,
not later than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting.
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